
   

11/9/2023; Page 1 of 3 

 

 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA  

Monday, November 13, 2023 
5:30 p.m. Regular Meeting 

 

Clovis Point Elementary School 
 
 

The Eastmont School District is governed by a board of five directors.  The Eastmont Board of Directors sets the direction of 
the District by establishing goals, objectives, and policies to guide the superintendent who supervises all programs and staff. 
The Board of Directors is responsible for ensuring that the Eastmont School District is adequately financed to meet those goals, 
objectives, and policies; for monitoring the progress of the District; and for evaluating the performance of the superintendent. 
Each board member has a fiduciary role to the District and, as such is responsible for using his or her best judgment in 
conducting the affairs of the District. 
The Board generally meets at 5:30 p.m. on the second and fourth Monday of each month at either a school site or the 
Administration Office Board Room at 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee. On holidays, or when a conflict occurs, a meeting 
may be held at an alternate time and/or date with proper notification given to the media.   
The complete 2023-24 Board Meeting Schedule is available at www.eastmont206.org under the About Us/School Board tab. 

 

 
 

 NOTICE is hereby given that the Eastmont School District No. 206 Board of Directors, 
Douglas County, Washington will hold a regular meeting on Monday, November 13, 2023 
beginning at 5:30 p.m. in the Clovis Point Elementary School Library, 1855 4th Street SE, 
East Wenatchee for the purpose of considering and acting upon the following agenda items: 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE   
 
II. APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 

 
III. PUBLIC COMMENT  

Public comment may occur orally or through written comments.  Written comments must 
be received within 24 hours before the Board meeting.  Comments critical of personnel, 
students, or volunteers will not be allowed given privacy concerns. Instead, they will be 
referred to the Superintendent for further inquiry and possible action. Comments are 
limited to 3 minutes per person and 10 minutes per topic. The Board asks those offering 
comment to recognize that as a K-12 public school system, we are modeling civil 
discourse and the democratic process for the youth in our community.   

 

Written comments may be sent by regular mail to Eastmont School District or emailed to 
schoolboard@eastmont206.org   
 

IV. STUDENT RECOGNITION 
A. Student Recognition — Amy Dorey, Principal with Clovis Students 
 
 

http://www.eastmont206.org/
mailto:schoolboard@eastmont206.org


   

11/9/2023; Page 2 of 3 

 
 

V. STAFF RECOGNITION 
A. Staff Years of Service Recognition — Meaghan Vibbert, Board Member 

• Shannon Schmitten with 20 years as of August 2023 
• Lolita Gavin-Zehnder with 25 years as of August 2023 
• Stacy West with 25 years as of August 2023 
• Ismael Williams with 25 years as of August 2023 

 
VI. BUILDING AND PROGRAM REPORT 

A. Conversation with Clovis Point Elementary School Staff 
B. Clovis Point Elementary School Building Report — Amy Dorey, Principal 
 

VII. BOARD & SUPERINTENDENT INFORMATION 
A. Board News 
B. Superintendent News 
 

VIII. CONSENT AGENDA 
(All items on the Consent Agenda have been distributed to all board members for study and are 
considered routine. ALL items appearing in this section are adopted by one single motion, unless a 
member of the board or the superintendent requests that an item be removed and voted on separately.) 

A. Approval of the minutes from the regular meeting held on October 23, 2023. 
B. Approval of the payment of the bills and/or payroll dated November 13, 2023. 
C. Approval of the Personnel Action Items dated November 13, 2023. 
D. Approval of the Staff Travel Requests Report dated November 13, 2023. 
E. Approval of the following field trip requests: 

1. EHS Band and Choir field trip request. 
2. EHS Cheerleading field trip request. 
3. EHS Choir field trip request. 
4. EHS FCCLA field trip request. 

F. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Cascade Elementary School. 

G. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Clovis Point Elementary School. 

H. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Grant Elementary School. 

I. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Elementary School. 

J. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Lee Elementary School. 

K. Approval of the School Improvement Plan and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendum for Rock Island Elementary School. 

L. Approval of OAC Services for Project and Construction Management Services. 
 
 



11/9/2023; Page 3 of 3 

M. Approval of the following policy for a Second Reading/Adoption:
Section Number Title 
3000 Students Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying 

N. Approval of Resolution No. 2023-15 Request for a Waiver of the 180 Day School
Year of Grades K-12.

O. Approval of Resolution No. 2023-16 Certification of 2023 Excess Property Tax
Collection.

P. Review of the Final Budget Status Report for Fiscal Year 2022-2023.
Q. Review of the Monthly Student Enrollment Report.

IX. REPORT
A. Human Resources Report — Kayla Brown, Executive Director HR

X. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION ITEM
A. Bond Oversight Committee — Becky Berg, Superintendent

XI. FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS

XII. ADJOURNMENT

  FUTURE TOPICS – Previously identified by the Board for further review. 
1) Spanish at elementary schools.
2) Student Liaisons to the School Board.

  UPCOMING BOARD MEETINGS 
  December 11   Site Visit & Regular Meeting at Kenroy Elementary School at 5:30 p.m. 
  January 8   Site Visit & Regular Meeting at Grant Elementary School at 5:30 p.m. 
  January 22   Site Visit & Regular Meeting at Lee Elementary School at 5:30 p.m. 
  February 12   Site Visit & Regular Meeting at Rock Island Elementary School at 5:30 p.m. 



Clovis Point Elementary Report for 2023-24 
 

11/13/2023; Report prepared by Principal Amy Dorey 

 

FTE=Full-time Equivalent; F & R=Free & Reduced; H=Hispanic; ELL=English Language Learners; M=Migrant; Sp Ed=Special Education; 
A=Students with <2 Absences Per Month; MB=Mobility, HL=Homeless, D=Discipline Rate, (Exclusion rates are the % of the (D) disciplined, 
E1=Exclusion of <=1 day; E2=2-3 days; E4=4-5 days; E6=6-10 days; E10=>10 days.  

Student Demographics and Information (School % / State %) from Prior Years Staff Information from Prior Years 
Year FTE F & R H ELL M SpEd A MB HL D E1 E2 E4 E6 E10 FTE Cert Para Office Maint Adm 

2018-19 701 67/47 54/24 16/12 15/2 14/15 90/83 2/2 3/3 8/4 16/28 40/32 13/15 16/14 15/12 58.5 37.5 12 4 3 2 
2019-20 704 68/46 54/24 15/12 14/2 12/15 89/83 3/2 1/3 5/3 31/27 53/34 3/15 6/13 8/11 63 41 13 4 3 2 
2020-21 668 65/45 59/25 15/12 14/2 11/14 94/89 3/2 2/2 NA NA NA NA NA NA 63 38.5 16 3 3 2.5 
2021-22 585 */61 */25 */12 */11 */13 56/67 */3 */3 2/3 NA NA NA NA NA 64 35 19 2 3 2 
2022-23 474 68/50 53/26 29/13 10/2 15/16 N/A 2/2 2/3 NA NA NA NA NA NA 66.5 33 26 2 3 2 

 
Student Testing Information:   

 
 
 
 



 
 

11/13/2023; Report prepared by Principal Amy Dorey 

District or Building Goal  Supporting Strategy/Activity 

Math 
By May, through the i-Ready program, 80% of all students K-6 will 
meet or exceed the projected growth goal in Math as measured by 
i-Ready Diagnostic test.  

Activity 1 
● Teachers will set growth goals with each student  

Activity 2 
● Math Success Groups 

Reading  
By May 2024, 90% of Eastmont K/1 students will be at CORE or above 
on the predominant DIBELS measure. 

○ Kindergarten:   
■ Beginning: LNF (Letter Naming Fluency) 25+ 
■ Middle: LNF (Letter Naming Fluency) 37+ 
■ End: NWF (Nonsense Word Fluency) - CLS (Correct Letter 

Sounds) 31- 49+ 
○ 1st Grade:  

■ Beginning: NWF (Nonsense Word Fluency) - CLS (Correct 
Letter Sounds) 30 - 46+ 

■ Middle:  52-77+ 
■ End:  ORF (Oral Reading Fluency) 39+ 

 

By May 2024, 80% of Clovis 2-6 students will be at Core or above 
based on DIBELS ORF.  

By May, through the i-Ready program, 80% of all students K-6 will 
meet or exceed the projected growth goal in ELA as measured by 
i-Ready Diagnostic test. 
 

Activity 1 
● Work with Monica (K-1) 
● Work with Peff (K-6) 
● Strengthen T1 and T2 

Activity 2 
● Progress Monitoring & PLC’s focus on data walls for 

T2 in classrooms 
Activity 3 

● 2-6 Teachers will use the individualized learning for 
i-Ready ELA 

 

Attendance 
By June 2024, Clovis Point students at 90% or better for attendance 
will increase from 73.69% of the population to 90% of the student 
population as progress monitored by monthly attendance reports. 
 

Activity 1 
● Teachers will talk to parents at conferences re: 

attendance and set goals with students who are 
already absent a lot. 

● Teachers will call (not PS) parents when students 
are absent - the ones we are worried about.  

Activity 2 
● Dom will facilitate with VPs and build elementary 

district plan 
● VP will send out Tier 1 and Tier 2 letters as 

attendance is tracked monthly. 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 10/23/23;  Page 1 of 3 

- DRAFT - 

 

 
 
 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

October 23, 2023 
 
 
 

CALL TO ORDER & PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
On Monday, October 23, 2023, the regular meeting of the Eastmont School District Board 
of Directors was called to order by Board President Cindy Wright at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Eastmont Administration Office, 800 Eastmont Avenue, East Wenatchee.   
 
ATTENDANCE 
Present: 

Cindy Wright, Board President 
Meaghan Vibbert, Board Vice President 
Jason Heinz, Board Director 
Steve Piccirillo, Board Director 
Whitney Smith, Board Director  
Becky Berg, Board Secretary/Superintendent 
Brandy Fields, Superintendent’s Secretary  

 
 

Also Present: 
District staff and community members 

 
APPROVE AGENDA/MODIFICATIONS 
Superintendent Becky Berg reported there were no modifications to the Agenda.  
 
MOVED by Director Vibbert and SECONDED by Director Piccirillo to approve the 
Agenda for October 23, 2023.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 

 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
Instructions for public comment were provided next to the sign-in sheet.  Individuals that 
completed the sign-in sheet for Public Comment were: 

 Adam Prater asked the Board to put the measure on the ballot for February to 
remodel Kenroy Elementary for safety and security. 

 
BOARD & SUPERINTENDENT INFORMATION 
A. Board News. 

Director Heinz shared that in their first year of competing, the EHS Slowpitch Softball 
team qualified for State.  
 



   

Minutes for 10/23/23;  Page 2 of 3 

- DRAFT - 

 
 
 

B. Superintendent News. 
Superintendent Berg shared information about the Strategic Planning Committee 
kick-off event and that we have almost 1,000 people provide feedback on the 
Portrait of a Graduate.  They will continue with another meeting on November 7th. 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Approval of minutes. The Board of Directors approved the minutes from the regular 

meeting held on October 9, 2023. 

B. Payment of bills and/or payroll. The Board of Directors approved the following checks, 
direct deposits, or wire transfers listed on check summaries dated October 23, 2023: 

 Warrant Numbers Total Dollar Amount 
7134081-7134087 $4,573.97 
7134088-7134090 $1,793.63 
7134091-7134091 $94.20 
7134092-7134235 $1,167,027.06 

 

C. Approval of personnel action. The Board of Directors approved the Personnel Action 
Item dated October 23, 2023. 

D. Approval of donation. The Board of Directors approved the donation from the Wildcat 
Booster Club. 

E. Approval of field trip request. The Board of Directors approved the following field trip 
request: 

1. EHS M.E.Ch.A. field trip request. 

F. Approval of field trip request. The Board of Directors approved the following field trip 
request: 

1. Eastmont Technology Department items. 

G. Review of policy. The Board of reviewed the following policy for a First Reading: 
Section Number Title 
3000 Students Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying 

 
MOVED by Director Heinz and SECONDED by Director Piccirillo to approve Consent 
Agenda Items #A-G.  The motion CARRIED unanimously. 

 
REPORTS 
A. District Assessment Report. 

Executive Director Kim Browning presented the District Assessment Report and 
answered questions from the Board.  

 
B. District Choice Report. 

Executive Director Spencer Taylor presented the District Choice Report, asked the 
Board a question, and answered questions from the Board.  
 
 
 



   

Draft Minutes for 10/23/23;  Page 3 of 3 

- DRAFT - 

 
 
 

C. Highly Capable Program Report. 
Program Coordinator Abbey Reynolds presented the Highly Capable Program 
Report and answered questions from the Board.  

 
DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 
A. Second Reading/Adoption of Resolution No. 2013-14 for Proposition No. 1 – 

Bonds to Expand and Renovate Schools and Improve Safety. 
Superintendent Berg presented the draft Resolution No. 2013-14 for Proposition 
No. 1 – Bonds to Expand and Renovate Schools and Improve Safety for a second 
reading/adoption. 

 
MOVED by Director Piccirillo and SECONDED by Director Vibbert to approve Resolution 
No. 2013-14 for Proposition No. 1 – Bonds to Expand and Renovate Schools and 
Improve Safety. 

 
President Wright asked for a roll call vote:  
Director Heinz – Aye Director Wright – Aye 
Director Piccirillo – Aye Director Smith – Aye 
Director Vibbert – Aye 
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 

 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 
None at this time. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
MOVED by Director Piccirillo and SECONDED by Director Heinz to adjourn the meeting.   
The motion CARRIED unanimously. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m.   
 



  Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources 
 
SUBJECT: Personnel Action Items 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
Resignations/Separation 
The following people have notified us of their plans to resign for the 2023-2024 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Andrews Ronald Transportation Bus Driver/2 years 
Barnes Kristy Kenroy Teacher/24 years 
Coble Candis Grant Teacher/11 years 
Cooley Danielle Kenroy Paraeducator/1 year 
Johnson Dustin Kenroy Teacher/12.5 years 
Jose Gille District Office Accounting Specialist/9 mths 
Sebring Eric EHS Custodian/2 months 

 
New Hires 
The following people have been offered tentative employment for the 2023-2024 school year: 
Last Name First Name School Position 
Anderson Lindsay Kenroy Paraeducator 
Castillo-Garcia Yulissa Grant Paraeducator 
Jaso Jeana Lee Paraeducator 
Northfield Kirsten Grant Life Skills Teacher 
Sanchez Yadira Rock Island Paraeducator 

 
Retirements 
The following people have notified us of their plans to retire: 
Last Name First Name School Position/Years 
Addleman Kathy EHS Teacher/22 years 
Andrews Sandee Kenroy Paraeducator/21 years 
Bittner Rebecca Clovis Paraeducator/5 years 
Williamson Lee Kenroy Teacher/31 years 



  Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒Personnel Expenditure 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Personnel Action Items listed above. 



 Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Staff Travel Requests Report 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 

NAME OF ATTENDEE(S): 
Lance Noell, Shane Brookover, Tom McRae,  
Elia Alialima-Daley, Breanna Zobel, Chris Hall, 
Vicki Robins, and Matt Charlton. 

TITLE, LOCATION & DATE OF 
CONFERENCE/WORKSHOP: 

PLC Conference in Sacramento, CA from 
November 12-15, 2023. 

BUDGET SOURCE & COST: Registration & Lodging/Meals/Mileage expenses 
are approx. $1,499 each and paid with LAP funds. 

 
 
 
 

NAME OF ATTENDEE(S): Dom Coffin, Kari Stewart, Noemi Martinez, and 
Dawn Damerval 

TITLE, LOCATION & DATE OF 
CONFERENCE/WORKSHOP: 

Behavior Solutions Workshop in Chicago/ 
Naperville, IL from March 10-13, 2024. 

BUDGET SOURCE & COST: Registration & Lodging/Meals/Mileage expenses 
are approx. $2,469 each and paid with LAP funds. 

 
 
 
 

NAME OF ATTENDEE(S): Jamea Connor, Doug Cornwell, Caitlin Livingston, 
and Cody Pierce 

TITLE, LOCATION & DATE OF 
CONFERENCE/WORKSHOP: 

Behavior Solutions Workshop in Chicago/ 
Naperville, IL from March 10-13, 2024. 

BUDGET SOURCE & COST: Registration & Lodging/Meals/Mileage expenses 
are approx. $2,469 each and paid with LAP funds. 

 
 
 
 



 Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None           ☒Noted above 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board approve these out-of-state travel requests 
for staff. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – EHS Band & Choir to Seaside and Portland, OR 
 
DATE:  October 23, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
Brittany Stevens and James Mitsuyasu are seeking the Board’s permission to take 
approximately 80 Band and Choir students for performances and workshops in Seaside 
and Portland, OR.  This will take place on May 23-25, 2024.  In addition to the high 
school students, there will be 2 staff chaperones and eight parents in attendance.  The 
cost to the students to attend is between $75-$140 with extra fundraising available, along 
with miscellaneous charitable funds.  The remaining costs will be paid from the EHS ASB 
budget.  A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request Form ☒ASB Funds 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight and out-of-state field trip 
request for EHS Band & Choir. 
 





















 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – EHS Cheerleading to Cheerleading USA Nationals  

in Anaheim, CA 
 
DATE:  October 23, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
EHS Cheer Head Coach Isis Sanchez is seeking the Board’s permission to take 
approximately 20 cheerleaders to the Cheerleading USA Nationals in Anaheim, CA.  This 
will take place on February 15-19, 2024.  In addition to the high school students, there will 
be 2 staff chaperones in attendance.  The cost to the students to attend is $350 with 
season fundraisers:  FundU, Kiddie Camp, and Concert Series.  The remaining costs will 
be paid from the EHS ASB budget.  A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request Form ☒ASB Funds 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight and out-of-state field trip 
request for EHS Cheerleading. 
 























 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – EHS Choir to Choir Retreat in Peshastin, WA 
 
DATE:  October 23, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
EHS Choir Director Brittany Stevens is seeking the Board’s permission to take 
approximately 38 Choir students overnight to a Choir Retreat in Peshastin, WA.  This 
will take place on August 13-15, 2024.  In addition to the high school students, there will 
be 1 staff chaperone, 3 parents, and 4 volunteers in attendance.  The cost to the 
students to attend is $20-30 with miscellaneous charitable funds available. The 
remaining costs will be paid from the EHS ASB budget.  A copy of the request is 
enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request Form ☒ASB Funds 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight field trip request for 
EHS Choir. 
 



















 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Field Trip Request – EHS FCCLA to State FCCLA Officers in Spokane, WA 
 
DATE:  October 23, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
As you know, field trips which take students overnight and/or out-of-state, must have 
Board approval. 
 
Abby Campfield is seeking the Board’s permission to take one student overnight to the 
State FCCLA Winter Executive Meeting in Spokane, WA.  This will take place on 
November 14, 2023.  In addition to the high school student, there will be a staff 
chaperone.  There is no cost to the student to attend. The remaining costs will be paid 
from the EHS CTE budget.  A copy of the request is enclosed. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Field Trip Request Form ☒CTE Funds 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of this overnight field trip request for 
EHS FCCLA. 
 











 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: School Improvement Plans and the Title I Schoolwide Plan Addendums 

for all Elementary Schools 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Due to their size, the School Improvement Plans and the Title I Schoolwide Plan 
Addendums for all elementary schools will be posted separately. 
 
 

 
 
 



TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 

SUBJECT: Award Contract for Project and Construction Management Services 

DATE:  November 13, 2023 

CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action

BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
The District sought Requests for Qualifications/Proposals (RFP) for Project and 
Construction Management Services in October 2022. At that time, we received three 
proposals. However, due the failed Bond in November 2022, we paused on the process. 
In order to prepare for the upcoming Bond in February 2024, the District reopened the 
RFP. After careful evaluation, OAC Services and Turner & Townsend Heery (CBRE) 
were selected for interviews.  Based on those interviews, we would like to recommend 
that the District enter into a contract with OAC Services for the Project and Construction 
Management Services listed in the RFP. 

ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒None ☒CPF Expenditure

RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends the Board approve the selection of OAC Services to 
provide Project and Construction Management Services for Eastmont School District and 
authorize the Superintendent to enter into a contract with them. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Approval of the following policy for Second Reading/Adoption: 

Section Number Title 

3000 Students Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of Harassment, 
Intimidation, and Bullying 

 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Attached are draft changes to Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, 
and Bullying for a second reading.  In 2023, the Legislature passed House Bill (HB) 1207 
Preventing and responding to harassment, intimidation, bullying, and discrimination in 
schools.  Our administrators recently received training in this policy.  After reviewing 
WSSDA’s suggested language updates, they recommend approval of these updates to 
Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying. 
 
No corrections, changes, or concerns have been identified by a Board Member. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Draft policy ☒None 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Policy No. 3207 Prohibition of 
Harassment, Intimidation, and Bullying for second reading/adoption. 

 



Eastmont School District #206  Policy No. 3207 
 Students 
 
 

Adopted 5/12/03; Revised 5/12/08; Revised 1/23/12; Revised 8/25/15; Revised 9/9/19; 
Reviewed by Admin 3/27/23;Draft 10/13/23; Page 1 of 3 

- Second Reading - 
 

PROHIBITION OF HARASSMENT,  
INTIMIDATION, AND BULLYING OF STUDENTS 

 
 
The Board is committed to a safe and civil educational environment for all students, 
employees, parents/legal guardians, volunteers, and community members that is free 
from harassment, intimidation, or bullying that is free from the harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying of any student.. As defined in legislation Chapter 28A.600 RCW (Students), 
“Harassment, intimidation, or bullying” means any intentional, electronic, written, verbal, 
or physical act including, but not limited to, one shown to be motivated by any 
characteristic in RCW 28A.640.010 and RCW 28A.642.010, or other distinguishing 
characteristics, when the act: 
A. Physically harms a student or damages the student’s property; 
B. Has the effect of substantially interfering with a student’s education; 
C. Is so severe, persistent, or pervasive that it creates an intimidating or threatening 

educational environment; or 
D. Has the effect of substantially disrupting the orderly operation of the school. 
 
Nothing in this section requires the affected student to actually possess a characteristic 
that is a basis for the harassment, intimidation, or bullying.   
 
“Other distinguishing characteristics” can include but are not limited to physical 
appearance, clothing or other apparel, socioeconomic status, and weight.   
 
“Intentional acts” refers to the individual’s choice to engage in the act rather than the 
ultimate impact of the action(s).   
 
This policy and accompanying procedure do not govern harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying of an employee, volunteer, parent/legal guardian, or community member. 
 
Behaviors/Expressions 
This policy recognizes that ‘harassment,’ ‘intimidation,’ and ‘bullying’ are separate but 
related behaviors towards a student. Each must be addressed appropriately. The 
accompanying procedure differentiates the three behaviors, however, this differentiation 
should not be considered part of the legal definition of these behaviors. 
 
Harassment, intimidation, or bullying can take many forms including, but not limited to: 
slurs, rumors, jokes, innuendos, demeaning comments, drawings, cartoons, pranks, 
gestures, physical attacks, threats, or other written, oral, physical or electronically 
transmitted messages or images directed toward a student.   
 



Eastmont School District #206  Policy No. 3207 
 Students 
 
 

Adopted 5/12/03; Revised 5/12/08; Revised 1/23/12; Revised 8/25/15; Revised 9/9/19; 
Reviewed by Admin 3/27/23;Draft 10/13/23; Page 2 of 3 

- Second Reading - 
 

This policy is not intended to prohibit expression of religious, philosophical, or political 
views, provided that the expression does not substantially disrupt the educational 
environment.  Many behaviors that do not rise to the level of harassment, intimidation, 
or bullying may still be prohibited by other District policies or building, classroom, or 
program rules. 
 
Training 
This policy is a component of the District’s responsibility to create and maintain a safe, 
civil, respectful, and inclusive learning community for students and will be implemented 
in conjunction with comprehensive training of staff and volunteers. Specific training 
requirements are included in the accompanying procedure. 
 
Prevention 
The District will provide students with strategies aimed at preventing harassment, 
intimidation, and bullying toward students. In its efforts to train students, the District will 
seek partnerships with families, law enforcement, and other community agencies.  
 
Interventions 
Interventions are designed to remediate the impact on the targeted student(s) and 
others impacted by the violation, to change the behavior of the aggressor, and to 
restore a positive school climate.  The District will consider the frequency of incidents, 
developmental age of the student, and severity of the conduct in determining 
intervention strategies. Interventions will range from counseling, correcting behavior and 
discipline, to law enforcement referrals.  
 
Students with Individual Education Plans or Section 504 Plans 
If allegations are proven that a student with an Individual Education Plan (IEP) or 
Section 504 Plan has been the aggressor or target of harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying, the school will convene the student’s IEP or Section 504 team to determine 
whether the incident had an impact on the student’s ability to receive a free, appropriate 
public education (FAPE). The meeting should occur regardless of whether the 
harassment, intimidation, or bullying incident was based on the student’s disability. 
During the meeting, the team will evaluate issues such as the student’s academic 
performance, behavioral issues, attendance, and participation in extracurricular 
activities. If a determination is made that the student is not receiving a FAPE as a result 
of the harassment, intimidation, or bullying incident, the District will provide additional 
services and supports as deemed necessary, such as counseling, monitoring and/or 
reevaluation or revision of the student’s IEP or Section 504 plan, to ensure the student 
receives a FAPE. 
 
Retaliation/False Allegations 
Retaliation is prohibited and will result in appropriate discipline. It is a violation of this 
policy to threaten or harm someone a student for reporting harassment, intimidation, or 
bullying, being identified as a targeted student, or participating in an investigation. 



Eastmont School District #206  Policy No. 3207 
 Students 
 
 

Adopted 5/12/03; Revised 5/12/08; Revised 1/23/12; Revised 8/25/15; Revised 9/9/19; 
Reviewed by Admin 3/27/23;Draft 10/13/23; Page 3 of 3 

- Second Reading - 
 

It is also a violation of District policy to knowingly report false allegations of harassment, 
intimidation, and bullying. Students or employees will not be disciplined for making a 
report in good faith. However, persons found to knowingly report or corroborate false 
allegations will be subject to appropriate discipline. Students or employees who 
knowingly report or corroborate false allegations will be subject to appropriate discipline. 
However, students, or employees will not be disciplined for making a report in good 
faith.   
 
Compliance Officer 
The superintendent will appoint a compliance officer as the primary District contact to 
receive copies of all formal and informal complaints and ensure oversee policy 
implementation. The name and contact information for the compliance officer will be 
communicated throughout the district. The District’s compliance officer will participate in 
at least one mandatory training opportunity offered by OSPI. 
 
The superintendent is authorized to direct the implementation of procedures addressing 
the elements of this policy.  
 
 
Cross References: 
 Board Policy 2161 Special Education and Related Services for Eligible 

Students 
 Board Policy 3205 Sexual Harassment of Students Prohibited 
 Board Policy 3210 Nondiscrimination 
 Board Policy 3211 Gender-Inclusive Schools 
 Board Policy 3241 Student Discipline 
 
Legal References: 
 RCW28A.28A.300.285 Harassment, intimidation, and bullying prevention 

policies and procedures — Model policy and 
procedure — Training materials — Posting on website 
— Rules — Advisory committee 

 WAC 392-190-059 Harassment, intimidation and bullying prevention 
policy and procedure — School districts 

 
Management Resources: 
Policy & Legal News, July 2023 
Policy & Legal News, July 2019 
Office for Civil Rights Dear Colleague Letter: Responding to Bullying of Students with 

Disabilities (OCR 10/21/2014) 
Policy & Legal News, December 2014 
Policy News, December 2010 
Policy News, April 2008 
Policy News, April 2002 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2023-15 Request a Waiver to the Minimum 180-Day 

School Year for Grades K-12 (WAC 180-18-040) 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
The Washington State Legislature requires a school year to consist of 180 school days.  
Districts must apply for a waiver from the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction 
(OPSI) to count full-day conference days as school days.  Our current waiver expires with 
this school year 2023-24.  We would like to continue with full-day conference days and 
apply for another waiver. 
 
In Resolution No. 2023-15 Request a Waiver to the Minimum 180-Day School Year for 
Grades K-12 (WAC 180-18-040), we are requesting a waiver of three days to the 
minimum 180-day school year for the 2024-25 school year for grades K-12 to conduct 
parent teacher conferences.   
 
 
ATTACHMENT FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Draft Resolution ☒School Funding  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
The administration recommends approval of Resolution No. 2023-15 Request a Waiver 
to the Minimum 180-Day School Year for Grades K-12 (WAC 180-18-040). 



Draft 11/1/2023; 

 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-15 
 

REQUEST A WAIVER OF THE MINIMUM 180-DAY SCHOOL YEAR  
FOR GRADES K-12 (WAC 180-18-040) 

 
 WHEREAS, the state legislature requires that the school year consist of 180 school 

days, Eastmont School District No. 206 is requesting a waiver of the minimum 180 day school year 
for the 2024-25 school year for grades K-12; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Office of Superintendent of Public Instruction (OSPI) is authorized to approve 

a waiver of this requirement, conditional upon the district’s providing adequate evidence that it is 
improving student learning through increased parental involvement and parent teacher communication 
by attending parent teacher conferences; and   
 

WHEREAS, the Eastmont School District has tracked attendance for parent teacher conferences 
and when half day conferences were held, attendance dropped throughout the District.  All parties stated 
lack of time as being the major detractor. Our educators shared the exhausting effect of preparing and 
conducting both student instruction and parent conferences on the same day. Using all-day conferences 
has resulted in increased satisfaction from both parents and educators.    
 
 WHEREAS, the Eastmont School District will continue to meet the minimum instructional hour 
offerings in grades kindergarten through twelve per RCW 28A.150.220(2)(a) under the waiver plan.   
 
 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT, the Board of Directors of the Eastmont School District 
No. 206 approves the request for a waiver from the OSPI to move from 180 school days to 177 school 
days for the 2024-25 school year. 

 
ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Eastmont School District No. 206, Douglas County, 

Washington, at a regular open public meeting thereof, held this 13th day of November 2023, notice of 
which was given as required by law, the following Directors being present and voting in favor of the 
resolution. 
 
ATTEST: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent/Secretary  Cindy Wright, Board President 

 

___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Date   Meaghan Vibbert, Board Vice President 
 

 __________________________________ 
 Jason Heinz, Board Member 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Steve Piccirillo, Board Member 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Whitney Smith, Board Member 

- DRAFT - 



  

 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent 

Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 
 
SUBJECT: Resolution No. 2023-16 Certification of 2023 Excess Property Tax 

Collection 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
 
The State of Washington requires the Board of Directors to annually certify to the county 
legislative authority the estimated taxes to be collected for the school district in the next 
calendar year on or before the thirtieth (30th) day of November. 
 
In addition, excess levies for the General Fund are limited to the maximum amount of 
$2.50 per thousand of assessed valuation.  Voters in our District approved a 4-year 
Educational Program and Operation levy for collection in January 2022 through December 
2025.  The amount authorized for collection in 2024 is $12,182,000.  Based on estimated 
assessed valuation, we anticipate the rate per thousand to be around $1.77.  
 
The levy amount for the Debt Service Fund is the amount required to meet principal and 
interest obligations on voted debt. 
 
Levy amounts were included in the 2023-2024 budget presented for Board approval on 
August 21, 2023. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Draft Resolution          ☒Revenue  

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of Resolution No. 2023-16 Certification of 
2023 Excess Property Tax Collection. 



 

53161971.2 

- DRAFT - 

 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2023-16 
 

CERTIFICATION OF 2024 EXCESS PROPERTY TAXES 
 
 

A RESOLUTION of the Board of Directors of Eastmont School District No. 206, 
Douglas County, Washington, certifying to the Board of County Commissioners of 
Douglas County, Washington and the Superintendent of North Central Educational 
Service District, the amount of excess property taxes to be levied in year 2023 and 
collected in year 2024 for the District’s General Fund and Debt Service Fund; and 
providing for related matters. 

 
BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE EASTMONT 

SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 206, DOUGLAS COUNTY, WASHINGTON, as follows: 
 
Section 1. Findings and Determinations.  The Board of Directors (the “Board”) of 

Eastmont School District No. 206, Douglas County, Washington (the “District”) takes note of 
the following facts and makes the following findings and determinations: 

(a)  By Resolution No. 2023-12, the Board adopted a budget for Fiscal Year 2023-2024 
(the “2023-2024 Budget”) that included certified General Fund educational programs 
and operation excess property taxes in the amount of $12,182,000 to be levied in 
2023 and collected in 2024. 

(b)  The 2023-2024 Budget included certified Debt Service Fund excess property taxes 
to pay debt service on all of the District’s outstanding unlimited tax general 
obligation bonds in the amount of $1,803,000 to be levied in 2023 and collected 
in 2024. 

Section 2. Certification of General Fund Excess Property Tax Levy; Assessor 
Authorization.  Pursuant to RCW 84.52.020, the Board certifies to the Board of County 
Commissioners of Douglas County, Washington and the Superintendent of North Central 
Educational Service District, an excess property tax levy in the amount of $12,182,000 to be 
levied in calendar year 2023 and collected in calendar year 2024 for the District’s General 
Fund.   

Section 3. Certification of Debt Service Fund Excess Property Tax Levy.  Pursuant 
to RCW 84.52.020, the Board certifies to the Board of County Commissioners of Douglas 
County, Washington and the Superintendent of North Central Educational Service District, 
an excess property tax levy in the amount of $1,803,000 to be levied in calendar year 2023 
and collected in calendar year 2024 for the District’s Debt Service Fund. 
 
 



 

11/13/2023; Page 2 of 2 

- DRAFT - 
 
 

Section 4. General Authorization and Ratification.  The Secretary to the Board, the 
President of the Board, the District’s Executive Director of Financial Services and other 
appropriate officers of the District are authorized to take all other actions and execute all 
other documents necessary to effectuate the provisions of this resolution, and all prior 
actions taken in furtherance of and not inconsistent with the provisions of this resolution are 
ratified and confirmed in all respects. 

Section 5. Effective Date.  This resolution takes effect from and after its adoption. 
 

ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of Eastmont School District No. 206, Douglas 
County, Washington, at a regular open public meeting thereof, held this 13th day of 
November, 2023, the following Directors being present and voting in favor of the 
resolution. 

EASTMONT SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 206 
DOUGLAS COUNTY, WASHINGTON 

 
ATTEST: BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
 
___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Dr. Becky Berg, Superintendent/Secretary  Cindy Wright, Board President 

 

___________________________________ __________________________________ 
Date   Meaghan Vibbert, Board Vice President 
 

 __________________________________ 
 Jason Heinz, Board Member 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Steve Piccirillo, Board Member 
 
 __________________________________ 
 Whitney Smith, Board Member 
 



FINAL BUDGET STATUS REPORT
FISCAL YEAR
2022 - 2023



GENERAL FUND

REVENUES

 Total received in 2022-2023 = $101,167,917

 $9,225,257 more than the prior year

 100.13% of the budgeted revenue amount ($98,793,751)

 Revenue Sources

 Local ($12.5 million): Property Tax Revenue from the EP&O Levy, Food Service Fees, 
Pre-School Tuition and Donations.

 Local Revenue is accounted for in our Local Sub Fund required for by OSPI

 State General ($55.4 million): Largest source of funding for the District. This includes 
Basic Education Apportionment and Local Effort Assistance (LEA).

 LEA is state matching money for District’s that have EP&O Levies.

 State Special Purpose ($16 million): Special Education, LAP, Bilingual, Food Service, 
Transportation, Highly Capable and special and pilot programs.

 Federal Revenue ($16 million): Represents reimbursement for programs that provide 
supplemental support for programs such as Title I, Migrant and Special Education. This 
category also includes temporary ESSER and DOH funding as a result of CARES Act.

 Other ($140,000): This category is for revenue received from local governments, 
educational service districts or surplus.



Actual Budget Actual Increase (Decrease)
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 From Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance 18,571,001             16,440,995                14,512,954           (4,058,047)                

Revenues

1000 Local Taxes 10,962,377             11,339,878                11,346,410           384,032                    
2000 Local Non-Tax 693,338                   533,000                     1,237,194             543,856                    
3000 State, General Purpose 51,547,896             55,183,239                55,420,929           3,873,033                 
4000 State, Special Purpose 14,443,464             15,390,732                16,016,553           1,573,089                 
5000 Federal, General Purpose 1,916                       2,000                          1,738                     (177)                          
6000 Federal, Special Purpose 13,156,456             16,244,902                16,004,651           2,848,195                 
7000 Revenues form Other Districts 100,601                   50,000                        62,131                   (38,469)                     
8000 Revenues from Other Agencies 4,364                       50,000                        2,065                     (2,299)                       
9000 Other Financing 32,248                     -                              76,246                   43,998                      

Total Revenues 90,942,660             98,793,751                100,167,917         9,225,257                 

Expenditures

00 Regular Instruction 48,031,369             55,319,631                51,351,640           3,320,271                 
10 Federal Stimulus 5,993,932                2,049,085                  7,568,327             1,574,395                 
20 Special Education Instruction 10,341,860             11,131,148                11,145,916           804,056                    
30 Vocational Instructino 4,119,897                4,170,205                  4,490,263             370,365                    

50 & 60 Compensatory Edcuation 8,145,669                9,424,331                  8,458,741             313,072                    
70 Other Instructional Programs 386,118                   407,505                     423,814                37,696                      
80 Community Services 290,204                   409,436                     490,790                200,586                    
90 Support Services 15,748,007             19,032,585                17,723,829           1,975,821                 

Sub Total Expenditures 93,057,057             101,943,926              101,653,319         8,596,262                 

Other Fin. Uses - Transfers Out GL 536 (to other funds) 1,943,650                430,550                     430,550                (1,513,100)                

Total Expenditures 95,000,707             102,374,476              102,083,869         7,083,161                 

Ending Fund Balance 14,512,954             12,860,270                12,597,002           (1,915,952)                

Fund Balance Detail:
Restricted for Other Items 40,000                     40,000                        40,000                   -                             
Restricted for Carryover 961,737                   250,000                     1,653,069             691,332                    
Nonspendable (Inventory/Prepaid Exp) 8,533                       20,000                        130,520                121,987                    
Assigned to Other Puposes 5,524,661                3,711,756                  2,641,147             (2,883,514)                
Unassigned Fund Balance 533,459                   683,000                     -                         (533,459)                   
Unassigned Minimum Fund Bal Policy 7,444,565                8,155,514                  8,132,265             687,700                    

Ending Fund Balance 14,512,955             12,860,270                12,597,002           (1,915,953)                

GENERAL FUND SUMMARY



Actual Budget Actual Increase
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 (Decrease)

1100 Local Property Tax 10,962,377           11,339,878            11,346,410            384,032           
Total Tax 10,962,377           11,339,878            11,346,410            384,032           

2100 Tuition & Fees, Unassigned 118,815                50,000                   73,878                   (44,937)           
2131 Secondary Vocational Education -                        -                          -                          -                   
2188 Child Care Tuitions and Fees 128,255                100,000                 139,320                 11,065             
2200 Sales of Goods, Supplies, Svcs 81,731                  27,000                   59,486                   (22,245)           
2231 Secondary Voc. Ed., Sales of Goods, Supplies and Svcs 98,658                  6,000                      1,823                      (96,835)           
2288 Child Care Tuitions and Fees 25,976                  -                          6,080                      (19,896)           
2289 Other Community Svcs Sales of Goods, Supplies, Svcs 55,875                  70,000                   77,629                   21,754             
2298 School Food Svcs - Sales of Goods (10,132)                 -                          1,065                      11,197             
2300 Investment Earnings 80,593                  25,000                   583,733                 503,140           
2500 Gifts & Donations 89,557                  200,000                 87,980                   (1,577)              
2600 Fines & Damages 18,005                  -                          22,181                   4,176               
2700 Rentals & Leases 18,415                  30,000                   23,325                   4,909               
2800 Insurance Recoveries 5,864                    -                          135,146                 129,282           
2900 Local Support Nontax 82,326                  75,000                   87,678                   5,352               

Total Local Support Nontax 793,939                583,000                 1,299,325              505,387           
3100 Apportionment 48,857,763           52,687,000            53,003,252            4,145,489       
3121 Special Ed - General Apportionment 1,093,452             1,171,239              1,196,374              102,923           
3300 Local Effort Assistance (LEA) 1,596,682             1,365,000              1,221,303              (375,379)         

Total State, General Purpose 51,547,896           55,223,239            55,420,929            3,873,033       
4100 Special Purpose, Unassigned 5,032                    -                          5,032                      -                   
4121 Special Education 6,293,875             6,755,450              6,998,959              705,084           
4155 Learning Assistance (LAP) 3,699,133             3,781,175              3,801,446              102,313           
4156 State Institutions, Neglected & Deliquent - Canyon View 134,544                115,782                 145,871                 11,327             
4158 Speical & Pilot Programs 562,462                830,000                 614,194                 51,733             
4165 Transitional Bilingual 1,637,405             1,696,600              1,768,509              131,105           
4174 Highly Capable 163,091                171,725                 175,036                 11,945             
4198 School Food Service 48,547                  40,000                   392,535                 343,987           
4199 Transportation - Operations 1,899,376             2,000,000              2,114,970              215,595           

Total State, Special Purpose 14,443,464           15,390,732            16,016,553            1,573,089       
5200 Direct Federal Grants - Taylor Grazing 1,915                    2,000                      1,738                      (178)                 
5500 Federal Forests 1                            -                          1                             0                       
6100 Special Purpose, Unassigned -                          -                   
6111 Federal Special Purpose - Stablization Funds 2,141,203             -                          475,180                 (1,666,023)      
6112 Federal Special Purpose - ESSER II 3,305,784             -                          201,479                 (3,104,305)      
6113 Federal Special Purpose - ESSER III 8,955                    8,209,962              5,000,447              4,991,493       
6114 Federal Special Purpose - ESSER III - Learning Recovery 436,785                1,000,000              585,263                 148,478           
6119 Federal Special Purpose - DOH Return To Learn 251,638                -                          672,989                 421,351           
6123 Special Education - ARP, IDEA - Federal 157,935                130,000                 156,025                 (1,910)              
6124 Special Education - Supplemental 1,130,178             1,255,540              1,735,232              605,055           
6138 Secondary Vocational Education - Perkins 47,854                  40,000                   69,602                   21,748             
6151 ESEA Disadvantaged - Title 1 1,313,134             1,381,600              1,480,558              167,424           
6152 Other Title: Title II & Title IV 339,692                277,800                 208,841                 (130,850)         
6153 Migrant, Federal 779,999                685,000                 713,689                 (66,310)           
6157 Institutions, Neglected & Deliquent - Canyon View 39,599                  25,000                   35,086                   (4,513)              
6164 Limited English Proficiency (LEP) 174,400                140,000                 132,750                 (41,650)           
6198 School Food Services 2,609,371             2,585,000              3,178,904              569,533           
6219 Special Purpose, CARES Act - Other -                        -                          856,080                 856,080           
6300 Federal Grants Through Other Agencies 248,598                255,000                 274,700                 26,103             
6998 USDA Commodities 171,332                260,000                 227,824                 56,491             

Total Federal, General & Special Pupose 13,158,372           16,246,902            16,006,389            1,120,437       
8100 Governmental Entities 4,364                    50,000                   2,065                      (2,299)              
8500 Nonfederal, ESD -                        -                          -                   
9300 Sales of Equipment 27,584                  -                          46,514                   18,930             
9500 Long Term Financing 4,664                    -                          29,732                   25,068             

Total Other Revenues 36,612                  50,000                   78,311                   16,632             

TOTAL REVENUES BY SOURCE 90,942,660           98,833,751            100,167,917          6,352,172       

GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE



Local Tax
12%

State, General 
Purpose

56%

State, Special 
Purpose

16%

Federal, General 
Purpose

16%

Other Revenues
0%

Revenues By Source

Local Tax State, General Purpose State, Special Purpose Federal, General Purpose Other Revenues

Revenue Type Totals

Local Support NonTax 1,299,325.20$           
Local Tax 11,346,409.52$          
State, General Purpose 55,420,929.06$          
State, Special Purpose 16,016,553.11$          
Federal, General Purpose 16,006,389.17$          
Other Revenues 78,310.98$                

Grand Total 100,167,917.04$        

The graph below depcits the sources of revenue for the 
Eastmont School District.  State, General Purpose is the largest 
funding source along with State, Special Purpose funding.  
Local taxes collected in the form of an EPO Levy accounts for 
12% of the District's revenues.



GENERAL FUND

EXPENDITURES

 Expenditures (including operating transfers) = $102,083,869

 $7,083161 more than the prior year

 99.72% of the budgeted revenue amount ($102,374,476)

 Operating Transfers = $430,550

 $250,000 – transferred to the Transportation Vehicle Fund

 $180,550 – transferred to the Capital Projects Fund for the interest and payment due on LGO debt

 Expenditure Sources

 Basic Education Funding: $51.3 million

 District Wide Support/Transportation/Food Service: $18.2 million

 Special Education: $11.1 million

 ESSER/Stabilization: $7.5 million

 Vocational (CTE): $4.5 million

 Supplemental Programs: $8.8 million

 Local Sub Fund Expenditures  = $14,026,443

 $9,080,145 for personnel that are not funded by the proto typical school formula (Music/Art Teachers, 
Long Term Subs) and other additional costs of collective bargaining agreements such as compensation 
for extra time outside the school day, loyalty incentives and vacation/sick leave cash out.

 $1,405,389 for Board Initiatives (K-7 Art, Stem, Music, Spanish)

 $425,613 for Preschool Costs that exceed available local revenues

 $2,209,060 for Extra-Curricular activities

 $439,905 safety and security 

 $466,331 for Strategic Plan Expenditures

 Curriculum Reserve, Maintenance Improvements, Technology Improvements and Operating 
Transfers.



Actual Budget Actual Increase
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 (Decrease)

01 Basic Education 46,693,683          54,055,744            50,030,596              3,336,912            
02 Alternative Learning Experience 1,328,306            1,363,910              1,321,044                (7,261)                  
97 District Wide Support 11,575,925          13,444,825            12,232,940              657,015               

Total CORE BEA 59,597,914          68,864,479            63,584,580              3,986,666            
11-19 ESSER, Stablization, Return to Learn 5,993,932            2,049,086              7,568,327                1,574,395            

21 Special Education 9,205,465            9,823,685              9,405,100                199,635               
23 Special Education - ARP, IDEA 150,571               187,933                 149,364                   (1,207)                  
24 Special Education - Federal 985,823               1,119,521              1,591,452                605,629               
31 Vocational Secondary, Basic Ed, State 2,946,928            2,827,070              3,230,689                283,761               
34 Vocational, Middle School Basic Ed 1,127,393            1,304,841              1,192,943                65,549                 
38 Vocational, Secondary, Federal 45,576                 38,292                   66,631                     21,055                 
51 ESEA Disadvantaged - Title 1 1,250,484            1,457,010              1,417,344                166,860               
52 Other Title: Title II & Title IV 323,485               275,939                 199,925                   (123,560)              
53 ESEA Migrant, Federal 742,785               792,994                 683,217                   (59,568)                
55 LAP 3,492,522            4,018,717              3,634,869                142,347               
56 State Inst., Neglected & Deliquent (Canyon View) 114,891               115,781                 139,560                   24,670                 
57 Institutions, Neglected & Deliquent - (Canyon View ) 37,710                 23,932                   33,588                     (4,122)                  
58 Special, Pilot Programs 562,546               830,112                 529,433                   (33,113)                
64 LEP, Federal 166,080               134,024                 127,083                   (38,997)                
65 Transitional Bilingual, State 1,455,166            1,775,805              1,693,722                238,556               
74 Highly Capable 149,213               163,393                 158,622                   9,409                   
79 Gear Up 236,905               244,112                 265,192                   28,287                 
88 Child Care 243,172               336,935                 425,613                   182,442               
89 Other Community Svcs 47,033                 72,503                   65,176                     18,144                 
98 School Food Svc. 2,241,401            2,799,583              3,106,723                865,322               
99 Pupil Transportation 1,940,061            2,688,173              2,384,166                444,105               

Total CATEGORICAL 33,459,143          33,079,441            38,068,739              4,609,596            
TOTAL EXPENDITURES                                93,057,057       101,943,920      101,653,319        8,596,261         

PROGRAM NAME

EXPENDITURES BY PROGRAM



Actual Actual Budget Budget Actual Actual Increase
2021-2022 2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 2022-2023 (Decrease)

No. Name Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent
22 Learning Resources 1,179,021          1.3% 978,315              1.0% 994,381              1.0% (184,640)         
24 Guidance/Counseling 2,618,026          2.8% 2,986,951          2.9% 2,908,543          2.9% 290,518          
25 Pupil Mgmt/Safety 2,560,679          2.8% 2,530,371          2.5% 3,136,442          3.1% 575,764          
26 Health 3,726,532          4.0% 3,774,641          3.7% 4,250,928          4.2% 524,396          
27 Teaching 54,070,739        58.1% 58,107,062        57.0% 56,755,324        55.8% 2,684,585       
28 Extracurricular 2,094,527          2.3% 2,367,150          2.3% 2,247,134          2.2% 152,608          
31 Prof. Development 1,782,238          1.9% 2,108,372          2.1% 2,021,917          2.0% 239,678          
32 Instructional Technology 402,887              0.4% 313,779              0.3% 1,185,822          1.2% 782,935          
33 Curriculum 691,198              0.7% 810,600              0.8% 1,364,064          1.3% 672,866          
34 Prof. Learning 555,142              0.6% 642,394              0.6% 611,458              0.6% 56,317            

69,680,989        74.9% 74,619,635        73.2% 75,476,014        74.2% 5,795,025       
42 Food 1,044,383          1.1% 1,093,719          1.1% 1,308,567          1.3% 264,184          
44 Operations - Food Svc. 982,449              1.1% 1,440,946          1.4% 1,519,638          1.5% 537,189          
52 Operations - Transp. 1,621,744          1.7% 1,928,220          1.9% 1,738,929          1.7% 117,186          
53 Maint. - Transp. 434,053              0.5% 470,291              0.5% 483,391              0.5% 49,338            
56 Insurance - Transp. 90,099                0.1% 110,000              0.1% 109,586              0.1% 19,487            
59 Transfers (276,117)            -0.3% (211,425)            -0.2% (336,498)            -0.3% (60,382)           
62 Grounds Maint. 365,440              0.4% 452,386              0.4% 506,606              0.5% 141,166          
63 Operations - Bldg 2,633,550          2.8% 2,901,426          2.8% 2,760,142          2.7% 126,591          
64 Maintenance 1,309,274          1.4% 1,493,445          1.5% 1,602,690          1.6% 293,417          
65 Utilities 895,062              1.0% 1,011,900          1.0% 1,029,698          1.0% 134,636          
67 Building Security 99,977                0.1% 419,598              0.4% 437,092              0.4% 337,115          
68 Insurance 742,658              0.8% 830,000              0.8% 828,643              0.8% 85,985            
72 Information Svcs. - Tech. 2,517,783          2.7% 2,814,566          2.8% 2,949,041          2.9% 431,259          
74 Warehouse 17,522                0.0% 18,764                0.0% 18,608                0.0% 1,086              
75 Motor Pool 173,516              0.2% 215,747              0.2% 180,220              0.2% 6,704              

83-85 Principal/Interest/Debt -                      0.0% 87,855                0.1% -                      0.0% -                  
12,651,393        13.6% 15,077,438        14.7% 15,136,353        14.9% 2,484,960       

23 Principal's Office 5,400,866          5.8% 6,068,707          6.0% 5,204,212          5.1% (196,654)         
5,400,866          5.8% 6,068,707          6.0% 5,204,212          5.1% (196,654)         

11 Board of Directors 261,164              0.3% 325,000              0.3% 222,259              0.2% (38,905)           
12 Superintendents Office 612,821              0.7% 628,770              0.6% 627,094              0.6% 14,274            
13 Business Office 963,085              1.0% 1,244,845          1.2% 1,032,333          1.0% 69,248            
14 HR 779,916              0.8% 743,853              0.7% 647,573              0.6% (132,343)         
15 Public Relations 60,495                0.1% 75,000                0.1% 58,887                0.1% (1,608)             
21 Supervision Instruction 1,788,137          1.9% 2,214,705          2.2% 2,313,708          2.3% 525,571          
41 Food Service Supervision 259,418              0.3% 334,918              0.3% 330,790              0.3% 71,372            
51 Tranportation Supervision 367,703              0.4% 391,087              0.4% 388,757              0.4% 21,054            
61 Maintenance Supervision 230,875              0.2% 219,962              0.2% 202,432              0.2% (28,442)           
91 Public Activities 155                     0.0% -                      0.0% 12,905                0.0% 12,750            

5,323,769          5.7% 6,178,140          6.1% 5,836,740          5.7% 512,971          

93,057,017        100.0% 101,943,920      99.9% 101,653,319      100.0% 8,596,302       

ACTIVITY

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY

EXPENDITURES BY ACTIVITY

Total Central Administration

Total School Building Admin.

Total Teaching & Support

Total Other Support



2 Cert. Salaries 42,668,084           45.9% 45,487,564          0.45            44,882,588          44.2% 2,214,504   
3 Class. Salaries 15,607,482           16.8% 16,923,105          0.17            16,410,259          16.1% 802,777      
4 Employee Benefits 22,330,077           24.0% 24,445,957          0.24            23,847,609          23.5% 1,517,533   

Total Salaries & Benefits 80,605,643           86.6% 86,856,626          0.85            85,140,457          83.8% 4,534,813   
5 Supplies/Materials 5,981,977             6.4% 6,374,879            0.06            7,618,033            7.5% 1,636,056   
7 Purchased Svcs 5,829,475             6.3% 7,578,058            0.07            7,328,650            7.2% 1,499,175   
8 Travel 235,389                0.3% 96,065                 0.00            204,910               0.2% (30,479)       
9 Capital Outlay 404,573                0.4% 1,038,292            0.01            1,361,269            1.3% 956,696      
0 Debit Transfer 380,574                0.4% 211,425               0.00            460,772               0.5% 80,198        
1 Credit Transfer (380,574)               -0.4% (211,425)              (0.00)          (460,772)              -0.5% (80,198)       

Total Operating Costs 12,451,414           13.4% 15,087,294          0.15            16,512,862          16.2% 4,061,448   

TOTAL EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT 100.0%      101,653,319 100.0%  8,596,262         93,057,058 100.0%      101,943,920 

 Percent                       
2021-22 

 Actual                   
2021-22 

 Budget                       
2022-23 

 Percent 
2022-23 

EXPENDITURES BY OBJECT
 Actual                   
2022-23 

 Percent                       
2022-23 

 Increase                     
(Decrease) OBJECT DESCRIPTION

Cert. Salaries
44%

Class. Salaries
16%

Employee Benefits
24%

Supplies/Materials
8%

Purchased Svcs
7%

Travel
0% Capital Outlay

1%

Expenditures By Object



CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND

REVENUES
 Revenue Total = $6,263,354

 $1,349,766 less than the prior year

 $5.8 million collected in Property Tax from the Capital Levy

 Transfers from the General Fund totaled $180,550

 Non Voted Debt $180,550

EXPENDITURES
 Expenditures Total = $7,294,367

 Transfers to the Debt Service Fund = $4,630,550

 Bus Camera Upgrades/New Intercom Systems = $1,720,017

 K3 Class Size Reduction Facility Project (Phase I) Final Payment = $93,651

 EHS Track Resurfacing/Stadium Asphalt = $508,319

 Clovis Point Playground = $167,601

 Miscellaneous upgrades = $174,227



Actual Budget Actual Increase (Decrease)
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 From Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance 6,085,744        3,367,975          3,367,975         (2,717,769)        

Revenues

1000 Local Taxes 5,845,380        5,879,340          5,867,704         22,324             
2000 Local Non-Tax 63,140             63,000               145,244            82,104             
3000 State, General Purpose -                  -                    43,056             43,056             
4000 State, Special Purpose 10,950             -                    -                   (10,950)            
9000 Other Financing 1,693,650        180,550             207,350            (1,486,300)        

Total Revenues 7,613,120        6,122,890          6,263,354         (1,349,766)        

Expenditures

10 Sites 1,771,234        650,000             685,995            (1,085,239)        
20 Buildings 3,517,936        250,000             253,779            (3,264,158)        
30 Equipment 413,069           350,000             1,724,044         1,310,975         
50 Sales & Lease Expenditure -                  265,000             -                   (1,953,182)        

4,628,650        5,530,550          4,630,550         1,900               

Total Expenditures 10,330,889      7,045,550          7,294,367         (4,989,704)        

Ending Fund Balance 3,367,975        2,445,315          2,336,962         (1,031,013)        

Fund Balance Detail:
Restricted for Bond Proceeds -                  -                    -                   -                   
Committed for Levy Proceeds 2,791,778        2,791,778          2,184,239         (607,539)          
Restricted for State Proceeds -                  -                    -                   -                   
Restricted from Other Proceeds 158,223           158,223             152,723            (5,500)              
Assigned to Fund Purposes 417,974           417,974             -                   (417,974)          

Ending Fund Balance 3,367,975        3,367,975          2,336,962         (1,031,013)        

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND SUMMARY

Other Fin. Uses - Transfers Out GL 536



DEBT SERVICE FUND

REVENUES
 Revenue Total = $7,693,664

 $23,134 more than last year

 $1.7 million collected in Property Taxes

 Taxes levied are the amount required for principal and interest payments on 
outstanding debt.

 Transfers from the Capital Projects Fund totaled $4,630,550

EXPENDITURES
 Expenditures Total = $5,621,936

 Bond and Interest Payments

FUND BALANCE

 Total ending fund balance totaled $16.9 million

 Includes fair market value of the investments in the Sinking Fund required for the 
Qualified School Construction Bond. 

 The Investments are held to pay this bond in full in December 2025



Actual Budget Actual Increase (Decrease)
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 From Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance 12,795,318      13,403,550        14,848,842       2,053,524         

Revenues

1000 Local Taxes 2,208,228        1,766,150          1,774,497         (433,731)          
2000 Local Support Nontax 56,134             10,000               513,000            456,866            
5000 Federal, General Purpose 778,261           776,000             775,618            (2,644)              
9000 Other Financing Sources 4,628,650        5,530,550          4,630,550         1,900               

Total Revenues 7,671,274        8,082,700          7,693,664         23,134             

Expenditures

Matured Bond Expenditures 4,360,000        5,990,000          4,450,000         90,000             
Interest On Bonds 1,257,750        1,169,650          1,169,650         (88,100)            
Bond Transfer Fees -                  900,000             1,746               1,746               
Arbitrage Rebate -                  -                   
Underwriter's Fees -                  -                    -                   -                   

Sub Total Expenditures 5,617,750        8,059,650          5,621,396         3,646               

Other Fin. Uses - Transfers Out GL 536 -                  -                    -                   -                   

Total Expenditures 5,617,750        8,059,650          5,621,396         3,646               

Ending Fund Balance 14,848,842      13,426,600        16,921,110       2,072,269         

Fund Balance Detail:
Restricted for Debt Service 14,848,842      13,426,600        16,921,110       2,072,269         

Ending Fund Balance 14,848,842      13,426,600        16,921,110       2,072,269         

DEBT SERVICE FUND SUMMARY



ASB FUND

REVENUES
 Revenue Total = $559,527

 $130,953 more than the prior year

 “Normal” operations are allowing the schools to provide extra-curricular activities for 
the schools. 

EXPENDITURES
 Expenditures Total = $480,360

 $60,176 more than the prior year

FUND BALANCE



Actual Budget Actual Increase (Decrease)
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-223 From Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance 585,394                   637,025                     593,784                    8,389                        

Revenues

1000 General Student Body 169,465                   206,350                     223,982                    54,517                      
2000 Athletics 153,175                   305,540                     182,581                    29,405                      
4000 Clubs 92,354                     255,925                     114,421                    22,067                      
6000 Private Monies 13,579                     22,500                        38,543                      24,964                      

Total Revenues 428,574                   790,315                     559,527                    130,953                    

Expenditures

1000 General Student Body 141,977                   228,200                     174,551                    32,574                      
2000 Athletics 172,115                   181,154                     177,787                    5,672                        
4000 Clubs 92,233                     238,015                     108,761                    16,527                      
6000 Private Monies 13,859                     15,000                        19,262                      5,403                        

Total Expenditures 420,184                   662,369                     480,360                    60,176                      

Ending Fund Balance 593,784                   764,971                     672,950                    79,167                      

Fund Balance Detail:
Restricted for Fund Purposes 593,784                   764,971                     672,950                    79,167                      

Ending Fund Balance 593,784                   764,971                     672,950                    79,167                      

ASSOCIATED STUDENT BODY FUND SUMMARY



TRANSPORTATION FUND

REVENUES
 Revenue Total = $875,814
 $293,182 more than the prior year
 $553,511 from OSPI for depreciation funding
 Transfers from the General Fund totaled $250,000

EXPENDITURES
 Expenditure Total = $496,040
 Purchase of 3 school buses

Actual Budget Actual Increase (Decrease)
2021-2022 2022-2023 2022-2023 From Prior Year

Beginning Fund Balance 1,052,190                1,629,445                  1,634,823                582,633                    

Revenues
2000 Local Support Nontax 7,188                        1,000                           72,303                       65,116                       
4000 State, Special Purpose 311,445                    250,000                       553,511                     242,067                     
9000 Other Financing Sources 14,000                      -                               -                             (14,000)                      
9900 Transfers in From General Fund 250,000                    -                               250,000                     -                             

Total Revenues 582,632                   251,000                     875,814                    293,182                    

Expenditures
30 Equipment -                            835,000                       496,040                     496,040                     

Total Expenditures -                           835,000                     496,040                    496,040                    

Ending Fund Balance 1,634,823                1,045,445                  2,014,598                379,775                    

END:
Restricted for Fund Purposes 1,634,823                1,045,445                  2,014,598                379,775                    

Ending Fund Balance 1,634,823                1,045,445                  2,014,598                379,775                    

TRANSPORTATION VEHICLE FUND SUMMARY



 

 

 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Caryn Metsker, Executive Director of Financial Services 
 
SUBJECT: Monthly Student Enrollment Report 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 

 

 
Official Count Day: Wednesday, November 1, 2023 
 
Total student head count reported, including our Alternative Learning program, is 
5,839. This is a decrease of 48 from the headcount in November 2022, which was 
5,887. 
 
Total student Full Time Enrollment (FTE) reported is 5,739.65. This is an increase of 
94.65 FTE from the overall budgeted FTE of 5,645 for the 2023-2024 school year. 
 

 K-12 Student enrollment is 134.34 more than expected. 
 ALE Program enrollment is 39.70 less than expected. 

 
The following chart compares budgeted to actual FTE by building: 

 

 
11/02/2023 Page 1 of 6



The following chart reflects month to month FTE enrollment trends over the past six school 
years, plus the current 2023-2024 school year: 
 

 
 
The following chart reflects month to month HEADCOUNT enrollment trends over the past 
six school years, plus the current 2023-2024 school year: 
 

 
11/02/2023 Page 2 of 6



 
 

 
OTHER PROGRAM ENROLLMENT 

 

Program Name Budget 
Current Year  

Average 
Prior Year  
Average 

Running Start (Head Count) 140.00 188.00 155.00 

Special Education (Age PK-21 Head Count) 750.00 752.00 784.00 

Transitional Bilingual (Head Count) 1,115.00 1,197.00 1,146.00 

Exited Transitional Bilingual (Head Count) 125.00 72.00 122.00 

Career/Technical Education-Gr 7-8 (FTE) 131.70 145.74 125.45 

Career/Technical Education-Gr 9-12 (FTE) 346.67 363.67 351.38 
 

 

11/02/2023 Page 3 of 6



���������	
����������
������������������������������������������������ � �!��""#�� 	�$���%�� &
��%�� '����%�� "�� ��"����!� ""#��� �!������"
� ��(�����
� )�����*���""#�� ""#���(�����
�+����)�����*���
�������������� �����!�#�� ,-�./0�� ,-/�,0�� ,-/��0�. ,-/��0�� ,-/��0/� ���0�� ,-,�,0�� 1,0,� ���0�1������#������������ ,-/�,0�� ,-2��0�. ,-2/�0�� ,-2,�0�� ,-2�.0/, .�0/, ,-2��02� 10.�

""#������34����5���������6����
GHIJKLMJ�NOHPQKRGST�UVVLWJXMYJYQIZ[\�]̂ _̀ab�cdef�gbhibfjbd�ie�]kddb̀i�lè îmbi�]̂ _̀ab�cdef�ndbopekq�lè î

11/02/2023 Page 4 of 6



���������	
����������
���������������������������������������������������������� !���� ������""��� 	�#������ $
����� %�&����� "�����"&����� ""������������"
�����'�����
� (���������""��� ""���'�����
��)���(���������
*+,-�� *,�-�� *,.-�� *,,-�� *,+-�/ /.-�/ 0/*-./ 1/.-.�2
��,-+� *��-/. *��-/. *��-0. *��-0. ��-0/ �+�-+. �,-,�
�0.-/� */,-�� */�-�� */*-�+ */*-+0 �+-00 *��-�* /�-+/
*/�-�� *��-�� *�*-�� *�0-�� *��-0. ��-0. *��-+* /-,�
*��-�� *��-�� *�*-�+ *��-/, *��-�, �-0, *�,-0� 1/0-*02

3456478�9:8;8<=4>?
3:@AB5�9:8;8<=4>?
C>4<=�9:8;8<=4>?
D8<>@?�9:8;8<=4>?
E88�9:8;8<=4>?

FGGHIJKLMFGGHIJKLMNFGGHIJKLMFGGHIJKLMFGGHIJKLM

OPQRR OSQRR OPQRR OPQRR OPQTS RQTS OSQRR UOQVVWTPQRR TXQRR SRQRR SRQRR TXQTS YQTS SYQZV UPQOTWSPQRR ZRQR[ Z[QRR Z[QRR ZOQVY TQVY ZOQSR URQVTWZRQ[R SZQRR SSQRR SSQRR SSQVV U[QZSW SSQ[Z RQRPSTQTR ZRQRR ZRQRR ZOQRR ZRQVV VQSV XRQTR UORQ[SWZXQTR ZXQRR XRQRR XRQRR ZXQTS RQRS ZVQTR TQRSZVQZR ZXQRR X[QRR X[QRR XOQRR SQ[R XVQSR U[QSRWXVQZR X[QRR X[QRR X[QRR X[QRR UOQZRW XSQOR UPQORWRQRR OTQRR OTQRR OTQRR OTQRR OTQRR RQRR OTQRRPZQRR TTQRR TZQRR TZQRR TSQVV XQVV TYQ[R VQOVTYQRR SOQRR SOQRR SRQRR SRQTS TQTS TXQYT OQ[RTXQSR TVQOZ TYQOZ TPQOZ TYQOZ UPQP[W TSQYR UVQ[[WTZQRR SVQRR SVQRR SVQRR SVQRR PQRR TPQOR SQXRTYQZR SRQRR TXQRR SRQRR TXQTS YQZS TTQ[R VQYSTPQYR SVQRR SVQRR S[QRR S[QTS SQ[S PXQTR OVQRTPXQZR TXQRR TZQRR TSQPR TZQOSRQRR OQRR OQRR OQRR OQRR OQRR ZRQZ[ USXQZ[WOPQRR OSQRR OPQRR OYQSS OPQPX RQPX OSQRR UOQYOWPZQRR ZXQRR ZSQRR ZTQPR ZSQPR [XQPR TYQPP [[QXTTVQSR TTQRR TTQRR TTQRR TTQRR [QVR S[QOR UTQORWSOQRR ZVQRR ZOQRR Z[QRR Z[QRR OOQRR TTQYR OPQTRTTQRR TTQRR TTQRR TTQRR TTQRR RQRR SPQVR UXQVRWSYQTR SPQRR SPQRR SPQRR SPQRR RQYR TTQ[R ZQZRTYQYR TXQRR TXQRR SOQRR TXQTS PQ[S PTQ[R OVQYSPPQYR PYQRR PYQRR PYQRR PYQRR UOQYRW ZYQVR UVRQVRWRQRR RQRR RQRR RQRR RQRR RQRR RQRRPZQRR TZQZP TZQOY TZQOY TZQVZ ORQVZ TYQYX VQZXTVQXR TTQRX TPQZ[ TPQZ[ TPQXO [QRO SRQVR UYQVXWTXQTR S[QRR SVQRR SPQRR SVQVV VQSV SZQZ[ UPQYZWSZQRT ZPQRR ZPQRR ZPQRR ZPQRR TQXY XOQPR UTQPRWXRQYR XVQRR XPQRR XPQRR XYQVV VQXV SZQXR OPQYVSSQYR STQRT STQRT STQRT STQRT UOQVYW SVQY[ [QTYS[QTY Z[QRR Z[QRR ZOQRR ZOQTS XQRV ZPQV[ UVQTTWOPQRR OTQRR OTQRR OTQRR OTQRR OQRR OSQRR UOQRRWTPQRR TZQRR TZQYV TZQPP TZQVV VQVV ZRQZ[ UO[QPRWZRQSR SXQRR ZRQRR Z[QRR ZRQVV URQVSW TZQS[ OOQTOTZQSR TTQRR TTQTY TYQTY TPQST U[QXYW TSQOR UOQVYWTSQYR TSQRR SRQRR TZQRR TZQVV RQXV SPQVR UTQXSWSYQRR SZQRR SPQRR STQRR STQVV [QVV SVQZR [QPVSVQRR S[QRR S[QRR SOQRR SOQTS UOQVVW SXQYR USQSVWSZQTR STQRR SSQRR STQRR STQVV U[Q[SW SSQPR UOQOSW
11/02/2023 Page 5 of 6



���������	
����������
���������������������������������������������������������� !���� ������""��� 	�#������ $
����� %�&����� "�����"&����� ""������������"
�����'�����
� (���������""��� ""���'�����
��)���(���������*+,-�./0123�4056527189
41/76+27�:;2<+8�=<>?@7580<2>�:;2<+8�=<>?
41/76+27�=<>?�@,?++0
41/76+27�A,13569B4=@�CDD+87;2<7<5/

EF�G�HI�E+710

JKKLMNOPQRSTQRSTLLTLULLLMKLMNOPQRSTLULLLM

VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVVXVWVV XYWVV XZWVV X[WXY XZW\Y ZW\Y X]W\V XWVYX\WVV XZWVV XYWVV XYWVV XYŴ^ XŴ^ [̂ŴV _WV̂[̂W]V ^̀ WVV ^̀ WVV XVWVV ^̀ Ŵ^ ]W\̂ X̂ŴV YWV̂ŶWVV ]̂WVV ^̂ WVV ^̂ WVV ]̂WZ[ a]Ŵ b̂ XZWYV a\̂ W_̂ bXYWZV YVWVV YVWVV YVWVV YVWVV XWXV X\WZV _WXVX̂ W]V X\WVV X\WVV X\WVV X\WVV a]W]Vb X_W_V a[W_VbX_W_V YXWVV YXWVV YXWVV YXWVV YW]V X\ŴV \]W[V]̂ XW]V ]XXW]_ ]X̂ Ẁ` ]X̂ Ẁ` ]XXWV̀ Ẁ_̀ ]V]W]Y X\W_X]VVW[V ]\ZW_\ ]\̀ WXZ ]\̀ WV̀ ]\_WXY \[W[Y ]][ŴX a_W_̀ b]]ZW_V ]YYW_Z ]X[WZX ]X_WZX ]YVW[\ ]̂ Ẁ\ ]_ZW]V âYWX̀ bVWVV ]WVV a]WVVb]̂ XW]V ]]̀ WX̂ ]̂ Ŵ[Y ]̂ \W[Y ]̂ \WZX a]WYZb ]YXWVY a]]WX\b]YYW]V ]̂ ]WYZ ]̂ ZWX] ]̂ Ẁ]X ]̂ ZWV[ a\̀ W\̂ b ]]ZẀ[ Ẁ\V]]_ŴV ]VXW\̂ ]\\W][ ]\VWV\ ]V_WX[ a\̀ W_̂ b ]X]W]Z â Ŵ[̀ bVWVV \WVV \WVV \WVV \WVV \WVV \WVV VWVVVWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVVŶ Ŵ]V Y]̀ W\̀ Ŷ \Ẁ] Y\YW[̂ Y]YWZ\ a[WỲ b XY]W[̂ []W__XVXWVV ^̀ VẀ^ ^̀ \ẀY _̂YẀ\ _̂̀ WZV a\XWXVb [̂YWX_ \XW\]Ŷ̀ WYV ^̂ Ŵ̀] ^̂ XWY] ^̂ \WXY ^̂ Ŵ̂V a]ZW]Vb V̂̀ ẀV ]̂ Ŵ`VWVV \WVV \WVV \WVV \WVV \WVV ŴYV a]WYVbŴZV ]WVV \WVV \WVV \Ŵ^ a]W][b XŴV a]Ẁ[bYW]V ]WVV ]WVV \WVV \WZ[ âWŶ b ZW_V aYW\̂ b[W]V ŴVV ŴVV ŴVV ŴVV aXW]Vb [W\V aXW\Vb[W_V ŴVV ŴVV ]WVV ]WZ[ aYW\̂ b ZWZV âẀ b̂ZW_V YWVV ]WVV ŴVV Ŵ̂^ âWX[b XW\V aVW[[bXWXV ŴVV ŴVV ŴYV Ŵ\[ a\W]̂ b [WZV aXWX̂ bYWXV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV aYWXVb \WZ\ a\WZ\b\WXV VWVV VWVV VWVV VWVV a\WXVb Ŵ\Y âW\Yb\ẀV VẀV Ŵ̂Z ŴYX ]WZV VW[V [WX̀ aXW_̀ b]VWVV ZWXZ \YWV̀ ]]WV̀ \XWYY aYWXYb ]]W[Y a_W]\bŶWVV \[W\̀ ]\ŴV ]]W_Y ]VWXY a\XWYYb X\W]X a]VW_VbYVWVV YYWẐ ZXWV_ ZZWZ\ Z]W\\ \]W\\ Z̀ ŴZ a[W]Zb

�c�de� ��fd�� ��ed�� �g�d�h ��ed�e gfdie �cgdc� gidheiigdf� fgidch fggd�c fggdf� fg�d�h hgdhh fghdfc j�dh�k
fgfdf� iifdg� ie�d�� ie�d�� iffdgc j��dhgk f�id�e j�cd�ck

gl�cidf� gl�h�d�� gl�hed�c gl���d�c gl��edhg j�edgck glg�edgg gg�d�c

g�edf� ccdge ggede� g�cdhc gghdef j��de�k gehdig jicdf�khli��de� hlf��d�c hlfi�d�� hlfh�d�g hlf�idhg
11/02/2023 Page 6 of 6



Eastmont School District — Relationships, Relevance, Rigor, and Results 
Human Resources Report — November 2023 

 
 

11/2023; Prepared and Presented by Kayla Brown, Executive Director of Human Resources 

Staff  

Year 

Total 
Staff 

Assignments Certificated Paraeducators 
Non-Rep & 
Secretaries 

Maintenance, 
Custodians, & 
Bus Drivers Admin Coaches 

Hispanic 
Staff 

2014-2015 786 361 155 66 75 28 101 58 
2015-2016 816 368 157 67 73 28 123 59 
2016-2017 852 372 152 67 75 31 155 68 
2017-2018 861 386 148 70 78 30 149 68 
2018-2019 905 408 163 76 77 32 149 77 
2019-2020 911 412 175 77 79 32 136 79 
2020-2021 742 399 160 77 75 31 0 80 
2021-2022 938 433 186 78 82 37 122 116 
2022-2023 906 433 189 76 82 37 89 131 
2023-2024 915 415 193 75.5 83 39 106 132 

 
Grievances   Collective Bargaining Groups & Contract Status 

Year Number  • The Eastmont Administrator Member (TEAM) – open 2024 
2014-2015 1  • Eastmont Paraeducator Association (EPA) – open 2024 
2015-2016 0  • Eastmont Public School Employees (PSE) – open 2024 
2016-2017 0   
2017-2018 0  Human Resources/Payroll/Benefits 
2018-2019 0  • Human Resources/Payroll/Benefits Staff:  7.0 FTE staff 
2019-2020 1  • Monthly Payroll:  $7.1 million per month (average) 
2020-2021 1   
2021-2022 1   
2022-2023 0   

 
District Essential Strategies Progress/Data 

Additional training on Boundary Invasion. 
Boundary Invasion video and scenarios training. Training 
started on November 1st. 

Provide regionally competitive wages and 
benefits. 

Through negotiations research, ensure wages and 
benefits are competitive with cohort (size) and area 
districts and employers. 

Provide new employee training/onboarding 
that encompasses Eastmont culture.  

Implement a new employee orientation and training 
pertinent to an employee’s position at Eastmont 
(Administrator, Certificated, Classified). Created Google 
Drive resources for classifications. 

Increase the percent of employees who are 
bilingual in Spanish. 

Continued focus and success in attracting and selecting 
qualified Hispanic/Latino staff.   

Reduce employee absenteeism. 
Increase focus on Attendance Matters campaign with all 
employees. Communicate regularly with staff members 
regarding attendance. Enforce abuse of leave if needed.  

  

2023-2024 Challenges   
● Increased need for substitutes (certificated and classified).  
● Increased awareness of the importance of staff attendance. 
● The increased need for various meetings and student support. 
● Evaluate an equitable and consistent staffing model. 



 
 
 
 
TO:  Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Becky Berg, Superintendent 
 
SUBJECT: Bond Oversight Committee 
 
DATE:  November 13, 2023 
 
 
CATEGORY 
☐Informational ☐Discussion Only ☐Discussion & Action ☒Action 

 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION AND ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATION 
Attached is a draft Bond Oversight Committee proposal. 
 
 
ATTACHMENT FISCAL IMPACT 
☒Draft Oversight Committee          ☒Committee Oversight 
 

 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The administration recommends approval of the Bond Oversight Committee. 
 



Draft 11/3/23; Page 1 of 3 

 
 
 

BOND OVERSIGHT COMMITTEE 
 
 
Committee Name 
Bond Oversight Committee 

 
Committee Authorization 
The elected Board of Directors of the Eastmont School District have commissioned this 
independent body to support their work by providing input and/or feedback. While the 
Directors welcome assistance from the Oversight Committee, they understand they 
retain legal authority and accountability for all aspects of running the Eastmont School 
District including the ultimate oversight of expenditure of bond revenues. 

 
Committee Purposes and Authority 
The purpose of the Bond Oversight Committee will be  

1.) to remain engaged with the bond process from start to finish;  
2.) to receive and review regular information from the District about the timeline 

and major decision points along that timeline;  
3.) to raise questions and/or make suggestions about the process to the Board or 

its designee; and  
4.) to inform the public concerning the expenditure of bond revenues.  

 
The Bond Oversight Committee will actively review and regularly report to the community 
on whether taxpayers’ money for school construction has been used appropriately and 
for the purposes described in the bond resolution approved by voters. 

 
In other words, while not a decision-making body, the Oversight Committee will be an 
integral part of the bond process. While not directing the work, they will be kept 
informed about the work as it unfolds and consulted as appropriate and feasible. The 
ultimate goal is that they will be well-informed non-employee citizens in the Eastmont 
School District when it comes to bond projects throughout the duration of the process. 

 
In furtherance of this purpose, the Bond Oversight Committee’s activities may include, 
but not be strictly limited to, the following: 

• Review of budget materials and construction timelines. 
• Review of contracts, as appropriate. 
• Review of the site plan and building design. 
• Review of the District’s efforts to maximize bond revenues by implementing 

cost-saving measures and incorporating efficiencies into school site design. 
• Review of any significant change orders generated during the construction 

process. 
• Tours of construction sites with prior permission of, and scheduling 

by, the Superintendent/designee. 



Draft 11/3/23; Page 2 of 3 

The Bond Oversight Committee will not have: 
• The authority to participate in the District’s actual bond sale and issuance 

process, or make decisions regarding the timing, terms, or structure of bond 
issuance; 

• The authority to select contractors or consultants for bond projects; 
• The authority to dictate the design of bond projects; 
• Unrestricted access to construction sites or construction projects without prior 

permission of the Eastmont Superintendent/designee, who reserves the right 
to determine frequency and timing of such visits; nor 

• The authority to contact District contractors or consultants without prior 
permission of the Superintendent/designee. 

 
Committee Operating Guidelines 
The members of the Bond Oversight Committee will be selected by members of the 
community and will not be employees of either the Eastmont School District, City of 
East Wenatchee, or Douglas County. They will reside within the Eastmont School 
District for the duration of their service on the Oversight Committee. They will serve in 
their capacity as unpaid volunteers. 

 
The members of the Bond Oversight Committee will determine their own internal 
structure, schedule, and working protocols, which will not conflict with this Committee 
charter issued by the School Board and which they will share with both the Board and 
Superintendent. 

 
All Bond Oversight Committee proceedings will be open to the public, and notice to the 
public will be provided in the same manner as the proceedings of the District’s School 
Board. 

 
A written report describing program progress will be prepared quarterly for the Board of 
Directors and published on the Eastmont School District’s website. 

 
The Committee will also issue an annual report to the Board, including an overall 
assessment of the bond projects, schedules, spending trends, and cost projections. 

 
Minutes of the proceedings of the Bond Oversight Committee and all documents 
received and reports issued will be a matter of public record and be made available on 
the District’s website. 

 
Conflicts of Interest 
A member of the Oversight Committee will not attempt to influence the District’s 
decision about any contract or project which will benefit the member’s outside 
employment or provide financial benefit to a family member. Nor will a committee 
member use his or her position on the committee to negotiate future employment with 
any of the firms hired to work on bond projects. If any other conflict of interest arises, a 
committee member will report it to the School Board and the other members of the 
Oversight Committee, and recuse himself or herself from related discussions. 

 



Draft 11/3/23; Page 3 of 3 

District Support of the Committee 
The Board of Directors will, without expending bond funds, provide the members of the 
Bond Oversight Committee with the technical and administrative assistance necessary 
for them to fulfill their purpose and to publicize their conclusions. 

 
The District will provide the Bond Oversight Committee with responses to any and all 
findings, recommendations, and concerns addressed in their financial and performance 
audits. 

 
Duration of the Committee 
The Bond Oversight Committee will become active upon the School Board’s formal 
adoption of this policy. 

 
The Bond Oversight will remain operational throughout the duration of the expenditure 
of bond funds to complete the projects described in the bond resolution approved by the 
voters. 

 
Opportunity for Review 
Since this Bond Oversight Committee model is new in Eastmont, the Board will invite the 
Oversight Committee to review this document with them approximately six months from 
the date it is voted into policy. At that review, the Board, with input from the Oversight 
Committee, may choose to make revisions or add clarifications. 


	Agenda
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Clovis Point Building Report
	Minutes from October 23, 2023
	Personnel Action Items
	Staff Travel Requests Report
	Field Trip-EHS Band & Choir
	Field Trip-EHS Cheerleading
	Field Trip-EHS Choir
	Field Trip-EHS FCCLA
	School Improvement Plans
	Award Contract for Project & Construction Management Services
	Policy No. 3207
	Resolution No. 2023-15
	Resoltuion No. 2023-16
	Final Budget Status Report for FY 2022-23
	Monthly Student Enrollment
	Human Resources Report
	Bond Oversight Committee



